
2016 Annual ReportVernon
310 Route 94

Vernon, NJ 07462
973-764-3200

Denville
55 Broadway

Denville, NJ 07834
973-453-3428

Sparta
31 Sparta Avenue
Sparta, NJ 07871
973-726-8294

Totowa
650 Union Boulevard

Totowa, NJ 07512
973-720-0555

www.HighlandsStateBank.com



Vernon
310 Route 94
Vernon, NJ 07462
973-764-3200

Sparta
31 Sparta Avenue
Sparta, NJ 07871
973-726-8294 

Denville
55 Broadway
Denville, NJ 07834
973-453-3428 

Totowa
650 Union Boulevard
Totowa, NJ 07512
973-720-0555

Transfer Agent
Computershare Inc.
P.O. Box 30170
College Station, TX 77842-3170
1-800-368-5948
www.computershare.com/investor

George E. Irwin
Chairman of the Board, Highlands State Bank
and Highlands Bancorp, Inc.

Bruce D. Zaretsky 
Vice Chairman of the Board, Highlands State Bank 
and Highlands Bancorp, Inc.
Managing Member, Glenwood Property  
Management, LLC. Owner, Smokey’s Tavern

Jeffrey M. Parrott
Sussex County Clerk 
President, Parr Homes Inc.

Steven C. Ackmann
President and CEO, Highlands State Bank
and Highlands Bancorp, Inc.

John V. Bosma
Owner and President, Boz Electrical Contractors, Inc.

E. Jane Brown
Chief Financial Officer, The Drexel Fund

Andrew J. Mulvihill
Owner and President, Mountain Resort Properties
CEO, Crystal Springs Real Estate Companies

Steven V. Oroho
NJ State Senator, District 24 
Financial Advisor, Stonebridge Capital Management

Dov Perlysky
Managing Member, Nesher, LLC

Michael Halpin
Retired Banker

Charles H. Shotmeyer
President, Shotmeyer Bros. Petroleum Corp. 

Martin Theobald
Owner, Heaven Hill Farm

Douglas Verduin
Certified Public Accountant, Berry, Verduin & Koch, LLC

Harold J. Wirths
Former Commissioner of Department of Labor & 
Workforce Development, State of New Jersey

Steven C. Ackmann
President and CEO

JoAnn Gross
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,  
Secondary Marketing and Accounting

Marion R. Gulli
Senior Vice President, Operations

Joseph L. Ennis, Jr.
Vice President, Production

Helen O. Wyche
Vice President, Operations

Secure Lending Solutions, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Highlands State Bank)

Steven C. Ackmann
President and CEO, Highlands State Bank

Eileen D. Piersa
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer  
and Treasurer

Patrick W. Smith
Executive Vice President and Senior Loan Officer

Julianne DePue
Senior Vice President 

Donald E. Estes
Senior Vice President

Robert L. Heigl
Senior Vice President 

Paula L. McKowen
Senior Vice President

Edward G. Poolas
Senior Vice President

Kathryn F. Rosa
Senior Vice President

Joanne E. Sagaas
Senior Vice President, Operations

James S. Donado
Vice President 

Maureen J. Gillan
Vice President 

Carol J. Hults
Vice President, Corporate Secretary

Donna M. Jemas
Vice President 

Monica A. McGee
Vice President

Alexis Schoerner
Vice President

Mary Alexander
Assistant Vice President 

Laurie A. Gutierrez
Assistant Vice President, Controller

Jason Rivera
Assistant Vice President

Eduardo Lopez
Assistant Treasurer

Teri Walker
Assistant Secretary

Officers

Board of Directors

www.HighlandsStateBank.com



To Our Shareholders:

Since our founding in 2005, Highlands Bancorp, Inc and Highlands State Bank’s strategy has focused on business banking. Our northern 
New Jersey market provides us a vast amount of opportunities to serve businesses that need both loans and deposit products to 
help them grow in a competitive environment. This in-turn provides us with earning assets in the form of loans, which enables us to 
grow, as well as the deposits we need to fuel that growth. We invest our resources in veteran lenders that work thorough established 
relationships to refer business to us, and also in the technology to make sure that banking with Highlands brings the kind of service and 
convenience that businesses today need to stay competitive. 

Even with this business focus, we recognize that business owners and their staffs are also personal customers, and our branch, on-line, 
and mobile technology makes banking with us as convenient as anywhere in the country. By working through a well-positioned group of 
four branch offices that attract retail customers by word of mouth, referrals, and simple convenience, we see that our branches continue 
to be an important point of contact for many of our customers.

One of the things we take pride in is that when you are banking with us, you do not need to compromise on the modern technologies 
that businesses and individual customers demand today.  Our relationship with technology providers has given us access to many of 
the mobile and on-line services formerly available to only the largest financial service providers. We have implemented many of these 
products including internet banking, mobile banking, remote deposit capture, mobile deposits, mobile check deposit, bill pay and mobile 
bill pay in order to better serve our customers the way they prefer to bank. 

Our focus has enabled us to continue our strong growth, and the end of 2016 saw our assets increase $80.3 million or 25.5% to $395.0 
million, from $314.7 million at the end of 2015. During the same period loans grew from $287.6 million to $335.1 million, an increase of 
$47.5 million or 16.5%

Our business focus is also critical to our deposit growth. An important part of our deposit structure continues to be non-interest bearing 
transaction accounts. For the 2016 year, these grew $15.1 million to $70.2 million, and represented 20.5% of our total deposit structure. 
Total deposits, including both non-interest and interest-bearing transaction accounts, money markets, savings and time deposits also 
exhibited strong growth, and increased by $82.1 million or 31.5% to $342.8 million, from $260.7 million at the end of 2015. Much of this 
strong growth came from within our market as a result of deposit promotions as opposed to wholesale sources.

The Company’s capital level remains strong. In June 2016, we received approval from our regulatory agencies to redeem the $6.9 million 
of SBLF preferred shares, and we used a portion of the proceeds we had obtained in our 2015 subordinated debt issuance to retire that 
obligation. The SBLF preferred stock was capital we obtained during the worst years of the financial crisis, and was given to healthy 
banks to spur lending to invigorate the economy. Further, in December of 2016 we completed our first capital raise since our inception, 
and succeeded in raising $8.5 million in new common equity at $9.30 per share. With the SBLF funds repaid, the additional new capital, 
and increased retained earnings, our capital grew from $24.1 million to $26.7 million. Our tangible book value per common share 
increased from $8.91 at the end of 2015 to $9.40 at the end of 2016.

Because of the strong loan growth, net interest income surged from $10.6 million for 2015 to $11.5 million in 2016, increasing by $900 
thousand year over year. Our loan loss provision decreased $189 thousand from the 2015 level of $711 thousand, to $522 thousand in 
2016. This decrease was due to continuing improvements in the credit quality of the loan portfolio. 

Non-Interest income improved to $4.1 million in 2016 from $3.3 million in 2015. This increase was due to higher fee income at the Bank 
and increases in gains on sales of the mortgages generated by our mortgage company.

Expenses grew by $1.5 million to $12.3 million for 2016, from $10.8 million for 2015. Salaries and commissions accounted for much of the 
increase, while occupancy, data processing and insurance expenses showed declines for the year.

These revenue and expense items led us to net income of $1.6 million for the 2016 year compared to $1.4 million in 2015. This 
represents earnings per basic common share of $.91 for 2016 versus $.80 per basic common share for 2015. 

We are gratified by the results we achieved in 2016 and we believe that the additional capital, our strong lending team, and dedicated 
bankers will serve us well as we move forward in 2017. 

As always, we thank you for your continued support.

George E. Irwin    Steven C. Ackmann
Chairman of the Board   President and CEO
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Tel: 732-750-0900
Fax:  732-750-1222
www.bdo.com

90 Woodbridge Center Dr., 4th Floor
Woodbridge, NJ 07095

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Highlands Bancorp, Inc.
Vernon, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Highlands Bancorp, Inc. and its 
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the 
related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows 
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO 
network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Tel: 732-750-0900
Fax:  732-750-1222
www.bdo.com

90 Woodbridge Center Dr., 4th Floor
Woodbridge, NJ 07095

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Highlands Bancorp, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 
and 2015, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Woodbridge, New Jersey
March 30, 2017

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO 
network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(In Thousands, except share and per share data) 2016 2015

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks 5,701$ 4,859$
Interest bearing deposits in other banks 181 50
Federal funds sold 2,202 -

Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,084 4,909

Time deposits in other banks 32,257 10,238
Securities available for sale 9,052 3,799
Restricted investment in bank stock 681 811
Loans held for sale 5,009 2,622
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses of $3,567 and
   $3,356, respectively 331,580 284,266
Premises and equipment, net 2,640 2,784
Goodwill 1,151 1,151
Accrued interest receivable 1,054 867
Foreclosed assets 518 488
Deferred income tax assets, net 1,721 1,549
Other assets 1,282 1,237

Total Assets 395,029$ 314,721$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities

Deposits:
Non-interest bearing 70,171$ 55,087$
Interest-bearing 272,623 205,626
Total Deposits 342,794 260,713

Borrowings 22,255 27,234
Accrued interest payable 130 98
Other liabilities 3,129 2,569

Total Liabilities 368,308 290,614

Stockholders' Equity
Highlands Bancorp, Inc. Equity:
  Preferred stock, Series C, liquidation preference of $1,000 per share, - 6,853
     6,853 shares outstanding at December 31, 2015
  Common stock, no par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares; issued
     and outstanding 2,702,067 shares on December 31, 2016 and 24,172 16,176
     1,787,089 shares on December 31, 2015
  Treasury stock, at cost 11,590 shares at December 31, 2016 and (84) (70)
     9,590 at December 31, 2015
  Retained earnings 2,645 1,156
  Accumulated other comprehensive loss (39) (8)
Total Highlands Bancorp, Inc. Equity 26,694 24,107
Noncontrolling interest 27 -

Total Stockholders' Equity 26,721 24,107

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 395,029$ 314,721$
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 

(In Thousands except per share data) 2016 2015
Interest income:

Loans 14,498$    12,581$      
Securities 62 121
Federal funds sold 33 10
Other interest-earning assets 115 41

Total interest income 14,708 12,753

Interest expense:
Deposits 1,990 1,418
Borrowings 1,181 698

Total interest expense 3,171 2,116

Net Interest Income 11,537 10,637
Provision for loan losses 522 711

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 11,015 9,926

Non-interest income
Fees and service charges 1,308 1,030
Gain on sale of loans 2,749 2,119
Gain on sale of securities available for sale - 114
Loss on abandonment of lease - (67)
Loss on sale of foreclosed asset (12) -
Writedown on foreclosed property - (13)
Other income 45 74

Total non-interest income 4,090 3,257

Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee benefits 6,647 5,698
Occupancy and equipment 1,684 1,688
Professional fees 783 590
Advertising and promotion 300 219
Data processing 850 996
FDIC insurance premium 244 214
Foreclosed asset expense 88 101
Other 1,687 1,334

Total non-interest expense 12,283 10,840

Net income before income taxes 2,822$      2,343$        
Income tax expense 1,032 834
Net income 1,790 1,509
Net income attributable to
       non-controlling interest 2 -
Net income attributable to
       Highlands Bancorp, Inc. 1,788$      1,509$        
Preferred stock dividends (144) (69)
Net income available to common stockholders 1,644$      1,440$        

Net income per common share 
Basic 0.91$        0.80$          
Diluted 0.88$        0.78$          

Weighted average common shares outstanding 
Basic 1,811,911 1,792,978
Diluted 1,868,886 1,845,697
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 
(In Thousands) 

2016 2015

Net income 1,790$     1,509$       

Other comprehensive income (loss):
     Unrealized holding gains (losses) on 
     securities available for sale (51)            96              

     Reclassification adjustment for realized
     gains included in the statements of income -            (114)          

(51)            (18)            
     Tax effect 20             7                

Other comprehensive loss (31)$         (11)$          

Comprehensive income 1,759$     1,498$       
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 
(In Thousands)

Accumulated
Accumulated Other

Preferred Common Treasury Earnings Comprehensive Noncontrolling
Stock Stock Stock (Deficit) (Loss) Income Interest Total

Balance - December 31, 2014 6,853$      16,168$  -$        (213)$              3$                    -$                    22,811$ 

Net income - - - 1,509 - - 1,509

Treasury stock acquired
(9,590 shares) - - (70) - - - (70)

Other comprehensive loss - - - - (11) - (11)

Preferred stock dividends - - - (69) - - (69)

Common stock dividends - - - (71) - - (71)

Share-based compensation expense - 8 - - - - 8

Balance - December 31, 2015 6,853$      16,176$  (70)$        1,156$            (8)$                   -$                    24,107$ 

Net income - - - 1,788 - 2 1,790

SBLF Preferred stock redemption (6,853) - - - - - (6,853)

Noncontrolling interest-HSB REIT, Inc.
       preferred stock issuance (107 shares) - - - - - 27 27

Common stock issuance - 8,500 - - - - 8,500

Direct costs associated with
common stock issuance - (522) - - - - (522)

Treasury stock acquired
(2,000 shares) - - (14) - - - (14)

Stock options exercised - 10 - - - - 10

Other comprehensive loss - - - - (31) - (31)

Preferred stock dividends - - - (144) - (2) (146)

Common stock dividends - - - (155) - - (155)

Share-based compensation expense - 8 - - - - 8

Balance - December 31, 2016 -$         24,172$  (84)$        2,645$            (39)$                 27$                     26,721$ 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 

2016 2015
(In Thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income 1,790$            1,509$          
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation of premises and equipment 448 516
Amortization and accretion, net (43) (227)
Gain on sale of available for sale securities - (114)
Proceeds of sales of loans held for sale 68,201 55,015
Origination of loans held for sale (67,839) (51,062)
Gain on sales of loans held for sale (2,749) (2,119)
Provision for loan losses 522 711
Loss on sale and writedown on foreclosed assets 12 13
Loss on branch lease - 67
Share-based compensation expense 8 8
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense (152) 538
Increase in interest receivable (187) (75)
(Increase) decrease in other assets (45) 8
Increase in accrued interest payable 32 16
Increase in other liabilities 546 112

Net cash provided by operating activities 544 4,916

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of time deposits (54,553) (16,813)
Principal repayments on time deposits 32,534 10,054
Purchases of securities available for sale (5,470) (4,959)
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale - 8,826
Proceeds from maturities, calls and prepayments of securities available for sale 160 3,310
Net increase in loans receivable (48,109) (49,552)
Purchases of restricted stock (487) (1,436)
Redemption of restricted stock 617 968
Purchases of premises and equipment (304) (475)
Addition to foreclosed assets (29) -
Proceeds received in regard to foreclosed assets 334 55
Acquisition of Secure Lending Solutions, Inc., net of cash received - (159)

Net cash used in investing activities (75,307) (50,181)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in deposits 82,081 26,341
(Decrease) increase in short term borrowings (5,004) 7,051
Proceeds from long term borrowings - 7,500
Purchase of treasury stock (14) (70)
Net proceeds from capital stock offering 7,978 -
Proceeds from exercised stock options 10 -
Proceeds of preferred stock sales to non-controlling interests 27 -
Redemption of preferred stock (6,853) -
Cash dividends paid on common stock (143) (71)
Cash dividends paid on preferred stock (144) (69)

Net cash provided by financing activities 77,938 40,682

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,175 (4,583)
Cash and cash equivalents-beginning 4,909 9,492
Cash and cash equivalents-ending 8,084$            4,909$          

Supplemental information:
Cash paid during the year for interest 3,139$            2,100$          

Cash paid during the year for income taxes 819$               363$             

Supplemental schedule of Non-cash Investing Activities:
Foreclosed real estate acquired in settlement of loans 347$               -$             

Loan made to facilitate disposition of foreclosed asset -$                 54$               
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Nature of Operations 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Highlands Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) and 
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Highlands State Bank (the “Bank” or “Highlands”). All significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

The only activity of Highlands Bancorp, Inc. is the ownership of Highlands State Bank. The Company is 
subject to the supervision and regulation of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the 
“FRB”) and New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance (“NJDOBI”). The Bank is subject to 
supervision and regulation by the NJDOBI and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). 

Highlands State Bank is a New Jersey state chartered bank which commenced operations on October 31, 
2005.  The Bank is a full service bank providing personal and business lending and deposit services.  The area 
served by the Bank includes Sussex, Passaic, and Morris Counties of New Jersey. The Bank has eight wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Secure Lending Solutions, Inc., HSB Mountain Lakes LLC, HSB Chapel LLC, HSB 
Village Way LLC, HSB Empire LLC, HSB StoneRidge LLC, 31 Sparta Avenue LLC, and HSB New Jersey 
Investment Company, Inc. Secure Lending Solutions Inc. (“SLS”) was acquired in February 2014 as part of 
the Bank’s strategy of entering the mortgage origination market. SLS specializes in conventional 1-4 family 
mortgage lending which includes FHA, VA, USDA Rural development, and reverse mortgage products. HSB 
Mountain Lakes, LLC, and HSB Chapel LLC were formed in 2010 and 2011, respectively; HSB Village Way 
LLC and HSB Empire LLC were formed in 2012, and HSB StoneRidge LLC was formed in 2014, to hold 
certain real estate properties acquired in settlement of loans. 31 Sparta Avenue LLC was acquired in 2013 as 
part of the Bank’s purchase of its new Sparta branch location. 

HSB New Jersey Investment Co. Inc. was formed in 2015 and has one subsidiary, HSB Delaware Investment
Co. Inc. Both of these companies hold and administer parts of the Bank’s investment portfolio. HSB 
Delaware Investment Co. Inc. has one subsidiary, HSB REIT Inc. which holds and administers part of the 
Bank’s loan portfolio.     

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in 
the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of foreclosed assets
and the valuation of deferred tax assets.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk
Most of the Company’s activities are with customers located within northern New Jersey.  Note 3 discusses 
the types of securities that the Company invests in.  Note 4 discusses the types of lending that the Company 
engages in.  Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio, its debtors’ ability to honor their  
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

contracts is influenced by the region’s economy.  The Company does not have any significant concentrations 
to any one industry or customer. 

Presentation of Cash Flows
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts due from 
banks, federal funds sold and short-term interest-bearing deposits in other banks all with original maturities 
within ninety days.  Generally, federal funds are purchased or sold for one day periods. 

Time Deposits in Other Banks

Interest-bearing time deposits in other banks mature within one year and are carried at cost.  All time deposits 
are covered by FDIC insurance. 

Securities  

Securities classified as available for sale are those securities that the Company intends to hold for an 
indefinite period of time but not necessarily to maturity.  Securities available for sale are carried at fair value.  
Any decision to sell a security classified as available for sale would be based on various factors, including 
significant movement in interest rates, changes in maturity mix of the Company’s assets and liabilities, 
liquidity needs, regulatory capital considerations and other similar factors.  Unrealized gains and losses are 
reported as increases or decreases in other comprehensive income (loss).  Realized gains or losses, determined 
on the basis of the cost of the specific securities sold, are included in earnings. Premiums and discounts are 
recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the securities.

Securities classified as held to maturity are those debt securities the Company has both the intent and ability 
to hold to maturity regardless of changes in market conditions, liquidity needs or changes in general economic 
conditions.  These securities are carried at cost, adjusted for the amortization of premium and accretion of 
discount, computed by the interest method over the terms of the securities.  At December 31, 2016 and 2015,
the Company held no securities classified as held to maturity.

Other-than-temporary impairment losses accounting guidance specifies that (a) if a company does not have 
the intent to sell a debt security prior to recovery and (b) it is more likely than not to it will not have to sell the 
debt security prior to recovery, the security would not be considered other-than-temporarily impaired unless 
there is a credit loss. When an entity does not intend to sell the security, and it is more likely than not, the 
entity will not have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis, it will recognize the credit component 
of an other-than-temporary impairment of a debt security in earnings and the remaining portion in other 
comprehensive income. 

The Company did not recognize any other-than-temporary impairment losses in the years ended December 
31, 2016 or 2015. 

Restricted Investment in Bank Stock

Restricted stock is comprised of stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) in the amount 
of $581,000; Atlantic Community Bankers Bank in the amount of $100,000; and Banker’s Co-Op Group in 
the amount of $10 as of December 31, 2016.  Federal law requires a member institution of the FHLB to hold 
stock according to a predetermined formula.  All restricted stock is recorded at cost. Management has 
evaluated the restricted stock for impairment and believes no impairment charge was necessary at
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

December 31, 2016. The determination of whether a decline affects the ultimate recovery of their cost is 
influenced by criteria such as (1) the significance of the decline in net assets of the FHLB as compared to the 
capital stock amount for FHLB and the length of time this situation has persisted,  (2) commitment by the 
FHLB to make payments required by law or regulation and the level of such payments in relation to the 
operating performance of the FHLB, and (3) the impact of legislative and regulatory changes on institutions 
and accordingly, on the customer base of the FHLB.

Loans Held For Sale

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value in the aggregate based on investor quotes. Net 
unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income. 

Loans Receivable 

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity 
or payoff are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of an allowance for loan losses and any 
deferred fees or costs. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of 
certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the yield (interest income) of 
the related loans. The Company is amortizing these amounts over the contractual life of the loan. Premiums 
and discounts on purchased loans are amortized as adjustments to interest income using the effective yield 
method.  

The loans receivable portfolio is segmented into commercial and consumer loans. Commercial loans consist 
of the following classes:  commercial real estate, commercial construction, and commercial. Consumer loans 
consist of the following classes: residential real estate loans, home equity loans and other consumer loans. 

For all classes of loans receivable, the accrual of interest is discontinued when the contractual payment of 
principal or interest has become 90 days past due or management has serious doubts about further 
collectability of principal or interest, even though the loan is currently performing. A loan may remain on 
accrual status if it is in the process of collection and is either guaranteed or well secured. When a loan is 
placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest credited to income in the current year is reversed and unpaid 
interest accrued in prior years is charged against the allowance for loan losses. Interest received on nonaccrual 
loans, including impaired loans, generally is either applied against principal or reported as interest income, 
according to management’s judgment as to the collectability of principal. Generally, loans are restored to 
accrual status when the obligation is brought current, has performed in accordance with the contractual terms 
for a reasonable period of time (generally six months) and the ultimate collectability of the total contractual 
principal and interest is no longer in doubt. The past due status of all classes of loans receivable is determined 
based on contractual due dates for loan payments. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of 
the balance sheet date and is recorded as a reduction to loans. The allowance for loan losses is increased by 
the provision for loan losses, and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. Loans deemed to be 
uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited 
to the allowance. All, or part, of the principal balance of loans receivable are charged off to the allowance as 
soon as it is determined that the repayment of all, or part, of the principal balance is highly unlikely. Because 
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all identified losses are immediately charged off, no portion of the allowance for loan losses is restricted to 
any individual loan or groups of loans, and the entire allowance is available to absorb any and all loan losses.  
The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for losses that can be 
reasonably anticipated. Management performs a periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance. The 
allowance is based on the Company’s past loan loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, 
adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, the estimated value of any underlying 
collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions and other relevant factors. This 
evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant 
revision as more information becomes available. 

The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The specific component relates to 
loans that are classified as impaired. For loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established 
when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower 
than the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers pools of loans by loan class including 
commercial loans not considered impaired, as well as smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as residential 
real estate, home equity and other consumer loans. These pools of loans are evaluated for loss exposure based 
upon historical loss rates for each of these categories of loans, adjusted for qualitative factors. These 
qualitative risk factors include: 

1. Lending policies and procedures, including underwriting standards and collection, charge-off, and
recovery practices.

2. National, regional, and local economic and business conditions as well as the condition of various
market segments, including the value of underlying collateral for collateral dependent loans.

3. Nature and volume of the portfolio and terms of loans.

4. Experience, ability, and depth of lending management and staff.

5. Volume and severity of past due, classified and nonaccrual loans as well as other loan modifications.

6. Quality of the Company’s loan review system, and the degree of oversight by the Company’s Board of 
Directors.

7. Existence and effect of any concentrations of credit and changes in the level of such concentrations.

8. Effect of external factors, such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements.

An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s estimate of 
probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in 
the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the 
portfolio.  

The Company engages in a variety of lending activities, including commercial, construction, residential real 
estate and consumer/installment transactions. The Company focuses its lending activities on individuals, 
professionals and small- to medium- sized businesses. 
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Commercial real estate loans include long-term loans financing commercial properties, either owner occupied 
or investment properties. Repayment is dependent upon either the ongoing business cash flow of the 
borrowing entity, resale of the property, or leases in the case of an investment property. Bank policy requires 
commercial real estate loans to have a loan to value ratio of 75% or less. Loan amortizations vary typically 
and do not exceed 25 years. These amortizing loans have a five year interest rate reset provision and in 
addition many have a 10 year balloon payment or call option.  

Commercial construction loans terms are one year to eighteen months and have a floating rate tied to the Wall 
Street Journal prime rate. The Company requires a loan-to-value of not less than 75% before, during, and after 
the construction. At this time the Company does not finance any speculative commercial construction projects 
and only considers construction projects that are pre-leased or owner occupied, with cash flow meeting 
Company policy.    

Commercial loans are also made to entrepreneurs, proprietors, professionals, partnerships, LLPs, LLCs and 
corporations.  The assets financed are used within the business for its ongoing operation. Repayment of these  
kinds of loans generally comes from the cash flow of the business or the ongoing conversions of assets, such 
as accounts receivable and inventory, to cash.   Commercial term loans may have maturities up to 10 years 
and generally have fixed interest rates for up to five years. Commercial lines of credit are renewed annually 
and generally carry variable interest rates. Typical collateral for commercial loans include the borrower’s 
accounts receivable, inventory and machinery and equipment.   

The Company also offers home equity lines of credit and home equity loans. Risks associated with loans 
secured by residential properties are generally lower than commercial loans and include general economic 
risks, such as the strength of the job market, employment stability and the strength of the housing market. 
Since most loans are secured by a primary or secondary residence, the borrower’s continued employment is 
the greatest risk to repayment. 

The Company offers a variety of loans to individuals for personal and household purposes. Consumer loans,
including home equity loans, are generally considered to have greater risk than first or second mortgages on 
real estate because they may be unsecured, or, if they are secured, the value of the collateral may be difficult 
to assess and more likely to decrease in value than real estate.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company 
will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual 
terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment 
status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. 
Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as 
impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-
case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including 
the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record and the amount of the 
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis by  
either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or the fair 
value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. 

An allowance for loan losses is established for an impaired loan if its carrying value exceeds its estimated fair 
value. The estimated fair values of substantially all of the Company’s impaired loans are measured based on 
the estimated fair value of the loan’s collateral. 
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For commercial loans secured by real estate, estimated fair values are determined primarily through third-
party appraisals. When a real estate secured loan becomes impaired, a decision is made regarding whether an 
updated certified appraisal of the real estate is necessary. This decision is based on various considerations, 
including the age of the most recent appraisal, the loan-to-value ratio based on the original appraisal and the 
condition of the property. Appraised values are discounted to arrive at the estimated selling price of the  
collateral, which is considered to be the estimated fair value. The discounts also include estimated costs to sell 
the property.  

For commercial loans secured by non-real estate collateral, such as accounts receivable, inventory and 
equipment, estimated fair values are determined based on the borrower’s financial statements, inventory 
reports, accounts receivable agings or equipment appraisals or invoices. Indications of value from these 
sources are generally discounted based on the age of the financial information or the quality of the assets.  

Loans whose terms are modified are classified as troubled debt restructurings (TDRs) if the Company grants 
such borrowers concessions and it is deemed that those borrowers are experiencing financial difficulty. 
Concessions granted under a troubled debt restructuring generally involve a temporary reduction in interest
rate or an extension of a loan’s stated maturity date. Non-accrual troubled debt restructurings are restored to 
accrual status if principal and interest payments, under the modified terms, are current for six consecutive 
months after modification.  Loans classified as troubled debt restructurings are designated as impaired. 

The allowance calculation methodology includes further segregation of loan classes into risk rating 
categories. The borrower’s overall financial condition, repayment sources, guarantors and value of collateral, 
if appropriate, are evaluated annually for commercial loans or when credit deficiencies arise, such as 
delinquent loan payments, for commercial and consumer loans. Credit quality risk ratings include regulatory 
classifications of special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss. Loans classified as special mention have 
potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention. If uncorrected, the potential weaknesses may 
result in deterioration of the repayment prospects. Loans classified substandard have a well-defined weakness 
or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They include loans that are inadequately protected 
by the current sound net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans  
classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in loans classified substandard with the added 
characteristic that collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of current conditions and facts, is highly 
improbable.  Loans classified as a loss are considered uncollectible and are charged to the allowance for loan 
losses. Loans not classified are rated pass.  

In addition, Federal regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review 
the Company’s allowance for loan losses and may require the Company to recognize additions to the 
allowance based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination, 
which may not be currently available to management. Based on management’s comprehensive analysis of the 
loan portfolio, management believes the current level of the allowance for loan losses is adequate.  

Foreclosed Assets

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value 
less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations 
are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair 
value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations are included in other expenses. Changes in the 
valuation allowance and direct write-downs are included in other non-interest income. Gains and losses on 
sales of foreclosed assets are included in other non-interest income.
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The Company may obtain physical possession of residential real estate collateralizing a consumer mortgage 
loan via foreclosure on an in-substance repossession. During 2016 the Company had one home equity loan in 
the amount of $18,000 that was in the foreclosure process. As of December 31, 2016, the reserve on this loan 
was $9,000. Equity on this loan is minimal and the Company is expected to increase the reserve going 
forward until a final resolution is obtained.   

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets, including loan and loan participation sales, are accounted for as sales when 
control over the assets has been surrendered.  Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered 
when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of 
conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets,  
and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to 
repurchase them before their maturity.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill was recognized in connection with the acquisition of Secure Lending Solutions, Inc. in 2014, and 
Noble Community Bank in December 2008. Goodwill represents the purchase price over the fair value of net 
assets acquired. In accordance with current accounting standards, goodwill is not amortized, but evaluated at 
least annually for impairment or more often if events and circumstances indicated that there may be 
impairment. Any impairment of goodwill results in a charge to income. Goodwill was tested for impairment 
as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and there was no impairment. 

Advertising Costs

The Company follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as incurred. 

Income Taxes  

Income tax accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense, current and deferred. 
Current income taxes reflect taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of 
the enacted tax law to taxable income or excess of deduction over revenue. Deferred income taxes are 
provided on the liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary 
differences and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences.  Temporary 
differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and net operating loss 
carryforwards and their tax basis.  Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the 
opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be  
realized.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the 
date of enactment. The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions if it is more likely than not, based on 
the technical merits, that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination. The term more likely 
than not means likelihood of more than 50 percent; the terms examined and upon examination also include 
resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes, if any. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-
not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a 
greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with a taxing authority that has full 
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knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of whether or not a tax position has met the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts, circumstances, and information available at the 
reporting date and is subject to management’s judgment. The Company had no uncertain tax positions as of  
December 31, 2016 and 2015. The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes as a 
component of income tax expense. The Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for 
the years before January 1, 2013.   

Share-Based Compensation

The Company has stock option plans for the benefit of its employees and directors. Stock compensation 
accounting guidance requires that the compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions be 
recognized in the financial statements. That cost will be measured based on the grant date fair value of the 
equity or liability instruments issued. The stock compensation accounting guidance covers a wide range of 
share-based compensation arrangements including stock options. 

The stock compensation accounting guidance requires that compensation cost for all stock awards be 
calculated and recognized over the employees’ service period, generally defined as the vesting period. For 
awards with graded-vesting, compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service 
period for the entire award. A Black-Scholes model is used to estimate the fair value of stock options.

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net 
income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available for 
sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the stockholders’ equity section of the balance sheet, 
such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income. 

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into off-balance sheet financial instruments 
consisting of commitments to extend credit and letters of credit.  Such financial instruments are recorded in 
the balance sheet when they are funded.

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic income per share represents net income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding during the period.  Diluted earnings per share reflects 
additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been 
issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance.  Potential common 
shares that may be issued by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock options, and are determined 
using the treasury stock method.   
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The following table presents the potential common shares related solely to the Company’s outstanding stock 
options during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. 

(In Thousands, except share and per share data) 2016 2015

Net income available to common stockholders 1,644$          1,440$            

Weighted average shares outstanding 1,811,911 1,792,978
Dilutive effect of potential common shares, stock options 56,975 52,719

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 1,868,886 1,845,697
Basic net income per common share 0.91$            0.80$              
Diluted net income per common share 0.88$            0.78$              

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,  15,000 and 134,000 stock options, respectively, were anti-
dilutive. 

Reclassifications

Certain items in the prior year’s consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current 
year’s presentation.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date of 
December 31, 2016 for items that should potentially be recognized or disclosed in these financial statements.  
The evaluation was conducted through March 30, 2017, the date these consolidated financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

Note 2 – Acquisition of Secure Lending Solutions, Inc.

On February 28, 2014, Highlands State Bank acquired Secure Lending Solutions, Inc. (“SLS”), a New Jersey 
mortgage banking company which has developed a strong presence in northern New Jersey and southern New 
York State. Secure Lending Solutions, Inc. operates as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank, and specializes in 
conventional one-to-four family mortgage lending that includes FHA, VA, and USDA Rural development loans, 
and also offers reverse mortgage loans. 

The acquisition was consummated pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement (“the Agreement”) dated October 
23, 2013, by and among the Bank and Secure Lending Solutions, Inc. Under the Agreement, the Bank acquired 
100% of the outstanding shares of SLS from its ownership partners, in exchange for a combination of cash and 
Highlands Bancorp Inc. common stock shares. As a result of the acquisition, the Bank recorded an intangible 
asset (mortgage broker licenses) at its fair value of $175,000, other assets of $17,000, other liabilities of $30,000, 
and goodwill of $188,000. Additional contingent consideration of $159,000 was paid in accordance with the 
Agreement during 2015 and was added to goodwill associated with the acquisition. 
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The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, and estimated fair value of securities available for sale at 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

(In Thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
December 31, 2016:

U.S. Treasuries 5,520$     6$            68$          5,458$     
U.S. Government agencies and 

sponsored agencies 3,000       3              1              3,002       
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises

(GSEs)-mortgage-backed securities 544          -          5              539          
Other 52            1              -          53            

9,116$     10$          74$          9,052$     

December 31, 2015:
U.S. Treasuries 50$          -$        -$        50$          
U.S. Government agencies and 

sponsored agencies 3,000       -          12            2,988       
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises

(GSEs)-mortgage-backed securities 689          -          3              686          
Other 73            2              -          75            

3,812$     2$            15$          3,799$     

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

(In Thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
December 31, 2016:

U.S. Treasuries 5,520$    6$            68$          5,458$    
U.S. Government agencies and 

sponsored agencies 3,000   3       1      3,002   
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises

(GSEs)-mortgage-backed securities 544         -         5             539         
Other 52      1       -     53      

9,116$    10$          74$          9,052$    

December 31, 2015:
U.S. Treasuries 50$          -$        -$        50$          
U.S. Government agencies and 

sponsored agencies 3,000       -         12           2,988       
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises

(GSEs)-mortgage-backed securities 689     -     3       686     
Other 73            2             -          75          

3,812$    2$            15$          3,799$    

The amortized cost and fair value of securities at December 31, 2016 by contractual maturity are shown below.  
Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because the borrowers may have the right to prepay 
obligations with or without penalties. 

Available for Sale
Amortized Fair

(In Thousands) Cost Value
Due within one year 50$ 50$
Due after one year through five years 7,522 7,465
Due after five years through ten years 966 962
Due after ten years 34 36
Mortgage-backed securities 544 539

9,116$ 9,052$
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The tables below shows the Company’s securities, their gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by 
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss 
position at December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

Less Than Twelve Months Twelve Months or More Total
Gross Gross Gross

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(In Thousands)

December 31, 2016:
    U.S. Treasuries 4,977$ 68$ -$ -$ 4,977$ 68$
    U.S. Government agencies and
       sponsored agencies 998 1 - - 998 1
    U.S. Government sponsored
       enterprises (GSEs) - 
       mortgage-backed securities 539 5 - - 539 5

6,514$ 74$ -$ -$ 6,514$ 74$

December 31, 2015:
    U.S. Government agencies and
       sponsored agencies 2,988$ 12$ -$ -$ 2,988$ 12$
    U.S. Government sponsored
       enterprises (GSEs) - 
       mortgage-backed securities 686 3 - - 686 3

3,674$ 15$ -$ -$ 3,674$ 15$

Management evaluates all securities with unrealized losses quarterly to determine whether the loss is other than 
temporary. At December 31, 2016, the Company had 14 securities in an unrealized loss position. Unrealized 
losses on these securities are due to interest rate fluctuations. Management therefore concluded that these 
securities were not other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2016. Sales of available for sale securities 
during 2016 and 2015 resulted in gross gains of $0 and $114,000 respectively.
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The composition of loans receivable at December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

(In Thousands) 2016 2015
Commercial 50,401$ 45,297$
Commercial real estate 241,417 205,786
Construction 18,344 12,185
Residential real estate 4,265 4,529
Home equity 20,914 19,819
Consumer 166 273
     Total Loans 335,507 287,889

Allowance for loan losses (3,567) (3,356)
Net deferred loan fees (360) (267)

(3,927) (3,623)
331,580$ 284,266$

(In Thousands) 2016 2015
Commercial 50,401$ 45,297$
Commercial real estate 241,417 205,786
Construction 18,344 12,185
Residential real estate 4,265 4,529
Home equity 20,914 19,819
Consumer 166 273
     Total Loans 335,507 287,889

Allowance for loan losses (3,567) (3,356)
Net deferred loan fees (360) (267)

(3,927) (3,623)
331,580$ 284,266$
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The following tables summarize information in regards to the allowance for loan losses and the recorded 
investment in loans receivable as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the activity in the allowance for loan losses 
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

(In Thousands) Commercial
Commercial 
Real Estate  Construction

Residental 
Real Estate

Home 
Equity Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for credit
losses:
Beginning Balance 1/1/16 1,306$          1,516$         182$              34$            307$          7$               4$                  3,356$         
   Charge-offs - (172) (122) - (99) (4) - (397)
   Recoveries - 84 - - 1 1 - 86
   Provisions 138 274 48 16 52 (2) (4) 522
Ending balance 12/31/16 1,444$          1,702$         108$              50$            261$          2$               -$               3,567$         
Ending balance: individually 
evaluated for impairment 29$               14$               1$                   20$            -$           -$           -$               64$              

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment 1,415$          1,688$         107$              30$            261$          2$               -$               3,503$         

Financing receivables:
Ending balance 50,401$       241,417$    18,344$         4,265$       20,914$    166$          335,507$    
Ending balance: individually 
evaluated  for impairment 731$             1,097$         233$              169$          -$           -$           2,230$         
Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment 49,670$       240,320$    18,111$         4,096$       20,914$    166$          333,277$    

(In Thousands) Commercial
Commercial 
Real Estate  Construction

Residental 
Real Estate

Home 
Equity Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for credit
losses:
Beginning Balance 1/1/15 1,032$           1,228$           182$                47$             271$           9$               1$                   2,770$          
   Charge-offs (84) - - - (43) - - (127)
   Recoveries - - - - 1 1 - 2
   Provisions 358 288 - (13) 78 (3) 3 711
Ending balance 12/31/15 1,306$           1,516$           182$                34$             307$           7$               4$                   3,356$          
Ending balance: individually 
evaluated for impairment 42$                79$                124$                9$               -$            -$            -$                254$             

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment 1,264$           1,437$           58$                  25$             307$           7$               4$                   3,102$          

Financing receivables:
Ending balance 45,297$         205,786$       12,185$           4,529$        19,819$      273$           287,889$      
Ending balance: individually 
evaluated  for impairment 689$              702$              355$                157$           -$            -$            1,903$          
Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment 44,608$         205,084$       11,830$           4,372$        19,819$      273$           285,986$      
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The following tables present the classes of the commercial loan portfolio summarized by the aggregate pass rating 
and the classified ratings of special mention, substandard and doubtful within the Company’s internal risk rating 
system and the classes of the consumer loan portfolio by credit risk based on payment activity as of December 31, 
2016 and 2015:  

Commercial Credit Exposure
Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade

Commercial Commercial
Commercial 
Real Estate

Commercial Real 
Estate Construction Construction

(In Thousands) 12/31/2016 12/31/2015 12/31/2016 12/31/2015 12/31/2016 12/31/2015
Pass 49,670$            44,563$              239,687$          204,449$            18,111$            11,830$              
Special Mention - 45 633 636 - -
Substandard 731 689 1,097 701 233 355
Doubtful - - - -

Total 50,401$            45,297$              241,417$          205,786$            18,344$            12,185$              

Consumer Credit Exposure
Credit Risk Profile Based on Payment Activity

Residential Real 
Estate

Residential Real 
Estate Home Equity Home Equity Consumer Consumer

(In Thousands) 12/31/2016 12/31/2015 12/31/2016 12/31/2015 12/31/2016 12/31/2015
Performing 4,096$               4,372$                20,269$            19,228$              166$                  264$                   
Nonperforming 169 157 645 591 - 9

Total 4,265$               4,529$                20,914$            19,819$              166$                  273$                   
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The following tables summarize information in regards to impaired loans by loan portfolio class as of December 
31, 2016 and 2015:  

December 31, 2016
Recorded 

Investment

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance

Related 
Allowance

Average 
Recorded 

Investment

Interest 
Income 

Recognized
(In Thousands)

With no related allowance recorded:
   Commercial -$             -$             -$             -$              -$             
   Commercial real estate 24 33 - 39 -
   Commercial construction - - - - -
   Residential mortgage - - - - -

With an allowance recorded:
   Commercial 731$            763$            29$              693$             22$              
   Commercial real estate 1,073 1,191 14 726 34
   Commercial construction 233 355 1 253 -
   Residential mortgage 169 180 20 158 -

Total:
   Commercial 731$            763$            29$              693$             22$              
   Commercial real estate 1,097 1,224 14 765 34
   Commercial construction 233 355 1 253 -
   Residential mortgage 169 180 20 158 -

December 31, 2015
Recorded 

Investment

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance

Related 
Allowance

Average 
Recorded 

Investment

Interest 
Income 

Recognized
(In Thousands)

With no related allowance recorded:
   Commercial -$              -$              -$              -$               -$              
   Commercial real estate 35 41 - 39 -
   Commercial construction - - - - -
   Residential mortgage - - - - -

With an allowance recorded:
   Commercial 689$             702$             42$               837$              12$               
   Commercial real estate 667 688 79 1,052 4
   Commercial construction 355 355 124 419 -
   Residential mortgage 157 168 9 159 -

Total:
   Commercial 689$             702$             42$               837$              12$               
   Commercial real estate 702 729 79 1,091 4
   Commercial construction 355 355 124 419 -
   Residential mortgage 157 168 9 159 -
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The following table presents nonaccrual loans by classes of the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

(In Thousands) 2016 2015

Commercial 299$         462$          
Commercial real estate 1,097 701
Commercial construction 233 355
Residential mortgage 169 157
Home equity 388 327
Consumer, other - 9

2,186$     2,011$       

The performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio is also monitored by analyzing the age of the loans 
receivable as determined by the length of time a recorded payment is past due. The following table presents the 
classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the past due status as of December 31, 2016 and 2015:  

December 31, 2016
30-59 Days 
Past Due

60-89 Days 
Past Due

Greater than 
90 Days

Total Past 
Due Current

Total Loans 
Receivable

Recorded 
Investment > 90 

Days and 
Accruing

(In Thousands)

Commercial 171$           80$             145$             396$            50,005$        50,401$             -$                   
Commercial real estate 66 1,490 888 2,444 238,973 241,417
Commercial construction - - 233 233 18,111 18,344 -
Residential mortgage - - - - 4,265 4,265 -
Home equity 4 - 17 21 20,893 20,914 -
Consumer, other - - - - 166 166 -
             Total 241$           1,570$        1,283$          3,094$         332,413$      335,507$           -$                   

December 31, 2015
30-59 Days 
Past Due

60-89 Days 
Past Due

Greater than 
90 Days

Total Past 
Due Current

Total Loans 
Receivable

Recorded 
Investment > 90 

Days and 
Accruing

(In Thousands)

Commercial 739$           23$             40$               802$            44,495$        45,297$             -$                   
Commercial real estate 35 976 - 1,011 204,775 205,786
Commercial construction - - 355 355 11,830 12,185 -
Residential mortgage - - 157 157 4,372 4,529 -
Home equity 145 12 309 466 19,353 19,819 -
Consumer, other 1 - 9 10 263 273 -
             Total 920$           1,011$        870$             2,801$         285,088$      287,889$           -$                   
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Note 4 - Loans Receivable (Continued)

In January 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update 
(“ASU”) 2014-04, “Receivables – Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subtopic 310-40) Reclassification 
of Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure.” This ASU applies to all 
creditors who obtain physical possession of residential real estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage 
loan in satisfaction of a receivable. The amendments in this update clarified when an in substance repossession or 
foreclosure occurs and requires disclosure of both (1) the amount of foreclosed residential real estate property 
held by a creditor and (2) the recorded investment in consumer mortgage loans collateralized by residential real 
estate property that are in the process of foreclosure according to local requirements of the applicable jurisdiction. 

At December 31, 2016, the Company had seven loans classified as TDRs with a combined balance of $1.0 
million. At December 31, 2015 the Company had seven loans classified as TDRs with combined balances of $1.4
million. Based upon the borrower’s unique situations, certain modifications were made to the original loans 
interest rate, maturity date or loan terms that resulted in these loans being classified as TDRs. The following table 
reflects information regarding the Company’s troubled debt restructurings for the years ended December 31, 2016 
and 2015:  

Troubled Debt Restructurings for the year ended December 31, 2016:

(Dollars In Thousands)
Number of 
Contracts

Pre-Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investments

Post-Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investments Modification

Residential mortgage 1 168$                        180$                        Reduced interest rate

Troubled Debt Restructurings for the year ended December 31, 2015:

(Dollars In Thousands)
Number of 
Contracts

Pre-Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investments

Post-Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investments Modification

Commercial 1 190$                         240$                         Reduced interest rate

There were no loans modified in troubled debt restructuring during the previous twelve months for which there 
was a subsequent default during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. 

Note 5 - Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk  

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to 
meet the financing needs of its customers.  These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and 
letters of credit.  Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount 
recognized in the financial statements.
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Note 5 - Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk (Continued) 

The Company’s exposure to credit loss from nonperformance by the other party to the financial instruments for 
commitments to extend credit and letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.  
The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-
balance sheet instruments.

The contract or notional amounts of financial instruments where contract amounts represent credit risk at 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
(In Thousands) 2016 2015

Outstanding loan and credit line commitments 108,583$       72,386$        

Outstanding letters of credit 969 1,019

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract.  Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn 
upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.  Commitments 
generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.  The 
Company evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis.  The amount of collateral obtained, 
if deemed necessary by management upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation.  
Collateral held varies but may include personal or commercial real estate, accounts receivable, inventory and 
equipment. 

Outstanding letters of credit written are conditional commitments issued to guarantee the performance of a 
customer to a third party.  These standby letters of credit expire within the next twelve months.  The credit risk 
involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending other loan commitments.  
The Company requires collateral supporting these letters of credit as deemed necessary.  Outstanding letters of 
credit at December 31, 2016 were $969,000, all of which were secured by collateral. Outstanding letters of credit 
at December 31, 2015 were $1,019,000, all of which were secured by collateral.  The current amount of the 
liability as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 for guarantees under standby letters of credit is not material. 
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Note 6 - Premises and Equipment   

The components of premises and equipment at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Estimated
(In Thousands) Useful Lives 2016 2015

Land perpetual 302$           302$           
Building 40 years 755             753             
Building Improvements 40 years 422             422             
Leasehold improvements 2 - 10 years 1,185          1,164          
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years 1,764          1,632          
Computer equipment and data processing
     software 3 - 5 years 1,030          882             

5,458          5,155          
Accumulated depreciation (2,818)         (2,371)         

2,640$        2,784$        

Estimated
(In Thousands) Useful Lives 2016 2015

Land perpetual 302$           302$          
Building 40 years 755             753             
Building Improvements 40 years 422             422             
Leasehold improvements 2 - 10 years 1,185     1,164     
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years 1,764          1,632          
Computer equipment and data processing
     software 3 - 5 years 1,030          882             

5,458          5,155          
Accumulated depreciation (2,818)         (2,371)         

2,640$        2,784$        

Note 7 – Deposits  

The components of deposits at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

(In Thousands) 2016 2015

Demand, non-interest bearing 70,171$           55,087$           
Demand interest bearing 25,400             26,287             
Money market accounts 94,247             42,123             
Savings 38,085             42,872             
Time, $100,000 and over 82,044             74,735             
Time, other 32,847             19,609             

342,794$         260,713$         

(In Thousands) 2016 2015

Demand, non-interest bearing 70,171$           55,087$           
Demand interest bearing 25,400             26,287             
Money market accounts 94,247             42,123             
Savings 38,085             42,872             
Time, $100,000 and over 82,044             74,735             
Time, other 32,847             19,609             

342,794$        260,713$        



Highlands Bancorp, Inc.

28

Note 7 – Deposits (Continued) 

At December 31, 2016, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

                                                                                                                       (In Thousands)
2017 $ 52,417
2018 41,277
2019 10,778
2020 8,323
2021 1,846
Thereafter 250

$114,891

Note 8 - Lease Commitments

The Company leases its banking facilities under operating lease agreements expiring through 2021. The 
Company is also required to pay a monthly fee for its portion of certain operating expenses, including real estate 
taxes, insurance, utilities, maintenance and repairs in addition to the base rent. Rent expense for the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 totaled $605,000 and $606,000, respectively.

Two of the lease agreements are with related parties.  In 2005, the Company entered into a ten-year operating 
lease agreement with a related party for its main banking office.  Total rent expense paid to the related party under 
this lease agreement was $189,000 and $185,000 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Since this operating lease has now expired, the Company is leasing this property on a month-to-month basis and 
pursuing the option of purchasing this location. In 2013, the Company signed a one-year lease agreement for 
additional office space located next door to its main banking office with a second related party, and in 2015 the 
Company leased additional office space in this same location, renewing the lease for both areas for an additional 
five years. Total rent expense paid to the related party under this lease agreement was $51,000 and $50,000 for the 
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The lease terms of the related party leases are comparable 
to similarly outfitted office space in the Company’s market.

Future minimum lease payments by year and in the aggregate under these lease agreements are as follows:  

                                                                                                                           (In Thousands)

2017             $ 353
2018 367
2019 253
2020 174
2021 86
Thereafter -

$1,233

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases (Subtopic 842).” This ASU requires all lessees to 
recognize a lease liability and a right-of-use asset, measured at the present value of the future minimum lease 
payments, at the lease commencement date. Lessor accounting remains largely unchanged under the new 
guidance. The amendments in ASU 2016-02 are effective for fiscal years, including interim periods, beginning 
after December 15, 2018. Early adoption of ASU 2015-03 is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the 
impact that the adoption of the guidance will have on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Note 9 - Borrowings  

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, “Interest – Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) – Simplifying 
the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.” This ASU is part of the FASB’s initiative to reduce complexity in 
accounting standards. To simplify presentation of debt issuance costs, the amendments in this ASU require that 
debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction 
from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and measurement 
guidance for debt issuance costs are not affected by the amendments in this ASU. The amendments in ASU 2015-
03 are effective for fiscal years, including interim periods, beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company 
adopted ASU 2015-03 during 2016 and the presentation of prior year’s information in the financial statements has 
been adjusted. The adoption of ASU 2015-03 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements.

The components of borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

(In Thousands) 2016 2015

Subordinated debt due May 16, 2024 5,000$ 5,000$
Subordinated debt due October 1, 2025 7,500 7,500
Deferred Subordinated debt
                  issuance costs (208) (233)
Federal Home Loan Bank debt
                  due April 15, 2019 5,000 5,000
Federal funds line of credit - 3,239
Warehouse line of credit 4,963 2,528
Federal Home Loan Bank short-
   term borrowings - 4,200

22,255$ 27,234$

In October 2015, the Company completed a $7,500,000 private placement of subordinated debt. The Note bears a 
6.9375% fixed rate of interest, with quarterly interest payments, and matures October 1, 2025. The Company used
these funds to redeem its $6,853,000 of Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series C issued in 
connection with the Company’s participation in the U.S. Treasury’s Small Business Lending Fund (“SBLF”) in 
June 2016 and to supplement the Bank’s regulatory capital levels to support future growth. In December 2015, 
$1,000,000 was down streamed to the Bank as additional Tier 1 capital. For more information on the Company’s 
participation in the SBLF program, see Note 10.

In May 2014 the Company completed a $5,000,000 private placement of subordinated debt. The proceeds of 
which the Company uses for increased capital for strategic growth and to supplement the Bank’s regulatory 
capital levels. The Note bears an interest rate of 8.00% with quarterly interest payments, and matures May 16, 
2024. Upon receipt of the proceeds, $4,000,000 was down streamed to the Bank as additional Tier 1 capital. 

The Company has a $5,000,000 unsecured line of credit with Atlantic Central Bankers Bank (ACBB) for federal 
funds purchased of which $0 was outstanding at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015. The line of credit 
expires June 30, 2017.  In 2014, the Company also established a $4,500,000 unsecured line of credit with Zions
Bank for federal funds purchased of which there were no balances outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 
December 31, 2015, respectively. This line of credit has no expiration date but requires the Company to maintain 
a demand deposit account balance at Zions Bank as specified in the Fed Funds Line Agreement. 

The Company also has borrowing capabilities with the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) which are 
secured under terms of a blanket collateral agreement by pledges of qualifying collateral. At both December 31, 
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Note 9 - Borrowings (Continued)

2016 and 2015, outstanding FHLB long-term borrowings were $5,000,000, carried an interest rate of 1.50% and 
mature in 2019. The FHLB short-term borrowings outstanding on December 31, 2015 had a weighted average 
interest rate of .51% and maturity date in 2016. 

The Bank’s subsidiary, Secure Lending Solutions, Inc. has a $5,000,000 mortgage loan warehousing agreement 
revolving line established with First Constitution Bank, and National Westminster Bank which it uses to fund 
mortgage loans. This line is secured by pledging the underlying mortgage collateral, and had balances 
outstandings of $4,963,000 and $2,528,000 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. These credit lines 
expire June 30, 2017, and August 31, 2017, respectively.

Note 10 - Preferred Stock

On May 8, 2009, the Bank issued to the United States Treasury Department (the “Treasury”) 3,091 shares of 
Series 2009A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase 155 shares of the Bank’s Series 2009B Preferred Stock 
for an aggregate purchase price of $3,091,000 in cash (“TARP funds”).  The warrant was exercised as a cashless 
exercise on May 8, 2009 and 155 shares of Series 2009B Preferred Stock were issued.  Both series of preferred 
stock qualified as a Tier 1 capital.  On December 22, 2009, the Bank consummated a second financing with the 
Treasury under the Capital Purchase Program for Small Banks pursuant to which the Bank issued to the Treasury 
an additional 2,359 shares of Series 2009A Preferred Stock for total proceeds of $2,359,000. The Series 2009A 
Preferred Stock paid non-cumulative dividends of 5% per annum for the first five years and 9% per annum 
thereafter.  Series 2009B Preferred Stock paid non-cumulative dividends of 9% per annum.  

Upon consummation of the holding company reorganization on August 31, 2010, the Company assumed all of the 
Bank’s obligations under the preferred stock, and issued to the Treasury shares of the Company’s preferred stock 
in exchange for the outstanding shares of Bank preferred stock.  

On September 22, 2011, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) 
with the Secretary of the Treasury (the “Treasury”), pursuant to which the Company issued and sold to the 
Treasury 6,853 shares of its Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series C (the “Series C Preferred 
Stock”), having a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share (the “Liquidation Amount”), for proceeds of 
$6,853,000.  The Purchase Agreement was entered into, and the Series C Preferred Stock was issued, pursuant to 
the Treasury’s Small Business Lending Fund (“SBLF”) program, a $30 billion fund established under the Small 
Business Jobs Act of 2010 that encouraged lending to small businesses by providing capital to qualified
community banks with assets of less than $10 billion. The proceeds were used to redeem the Series 2009A and 
2009B preferred stock previously issued to the U.S. Treasury under the Capital Purchase Program, and to further 
enhance the Bank’s business lending efforts.

The Series C Preferred Stock qualified as Tier 1 capital for the Company. Non-cumulative dividends were
payable quarterly on the Series C Preferred Stock, beginning January 1, 2012. The dividend rate was calculated as 
a percentage of the aggregate Liquidation Amount of the outstanding Series C Preferred Stock and was based on  
changes in the level of “Qualified Small Business Lending” or “QSBL” (as defined in the Purchase Agreement) 
by the Bank. Based upon the increase in the Bank’s level of QSBL over the baseline level calculated under the 
terms of the Purchase Agreement, the dividend rate for the initial dividend period, which is from the date of 
issuance through December 31, 2011, was set at 1.65%.  For the 2nd through 10th calendar quarters, the annual 
dividend rate was adjusted to between 1% and 5%, to reflect the amount of change in the Banks’ level of QSBL.
For the 11th calendar quarter through 4.5 years after issuance, the dividend rate was fixed at between 1% and 7% 
based upon the increase in QSBL as compared to the baseline. After 4.5 years from issuance, the dividend rate 
increased to 9%.  The actual dividend payments made during 2015 totaled $69,000 and reflected a rate of 1.00%.
The dividend payments for 2016 totaled $144,000 and reflected the rate increase from 1.00% to 9.00% in March 
2016 in accordance with the Program terms. 
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Note 10 - Preferred Stock (Continued)

On June 7, 2016 the Company used the proceeds from the October 2015 private placement of subordinated debt 
as discussed in Note 9 to redeem the outstanding $6,853,000 of SBLF preferred stock. The Company has no 
preferred stock outstanding at December 31, 2016. 

Note 11 – Common Stock

In December 2016 the Company completed a private placement of $8.5 million of common stock, by issuing 
913,978 shares of common stock at a price of $9.30 per share to mostly institutional investors. The Company 
plans to use the additional capital to enhance regulatory capital ratios and for general corporate purposes including 
organic growth initiatives. 

Note 12 - Federal Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as 
follows: 

(In Thousands) 2016 2015
Current taxes 1,184$    296$         
Deferred taxes (152) 538

1,032$    834$         

The effective income tax rate for 2016 and 2015 was different than the applicable statutory Federal income tax 
rate of 34% as follows:

(In Thousands) 2016 2015
Federal income taxes at statutory rate 959$        797$        
State taxes net of federal benefit 67            58            
Incentive stock options 2              2              
Other 4              (23)          

1,032$     834$        

(In Thousands) 2016 2015
Federal income taxes at statutory rate 959$        797$        
State taxes net of federal benefit 67            58            
Incentive stock options 2              2              
Other 4       (23)     

1,032$     834$        
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Note 12 - Federal Income Taxes (Continued)  

The components of the net deferred tax asset (liability) at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

  

(In Thousands) 2016 2015
Deferred tax assets:

Organization and start-up costs 58$          73$           
Net operating loss carryforwards 558 558
Allowance for loan losses 1,173 856
Non-accrual interest 15 24
Non-qualified stock option compensation 113 113
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale 25 5
Other 34 136

Total Deferred Tax Assets 1,976 1,765

Deferred tax liabilities:
Cash basis conversion (59) (50)
Depreciation (196) (166)

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (255) (216)

Net Deferred Tax Asset 1,721$    1,549$      

  

U.S. GAAP requires a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets if, based upon the weight of available 
evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The full 
realization of the tax benefits associated with the carryforwards depends predominately upon the recognition of 
ordinary income during the carryforward period. Management had concluded that there was no valuation 
allowance for deferred tax assets required at December 31, 2016 or 2015.      

At December 31, 2016, the Company had available unused net operating loss carryforwards for federal income 
tax purposes of approximately $1,641,000 which start to expire in 2025. The Company has no unused net 
operating loss carryforwards remaining for state purposes.  

Note 13 - Transactions with Executive Officers, Directors, and Principal Stockholders 

The Bank has had, and may be expected to have in the future, banking transactions in the ordinary course of 
business with its executive officers, directors, principal stockholders, their immediate families and affiliated 
companies (commonly referred to as related parties), on the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as 
those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with others.  Deposits of related parties totaled 
$11,454,000 and $13,292,000 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.  
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Note 13 - Transactions with Executive Officers, Directors, and Principal Stockholders (Continued)  

Activity with respect to loans to related parties for the year ended December 31, 2016 is as follows:

(In Thousands) 2016
Balance, beginning 12,253$
    Loans originated 738
    Collection of principal (3,349)

Balance, ending 9,642$

The Company leases the Bank’s main office from a real estate company controlled and majority owned by three 
of its directors (see Note 8), and additional office space adjacent to the main office from a company owned by one 
director. 

Note 14 - Stock Option Plans

In 2006, the Board of Directors adopted three stock related compensation plans: the Highlands State Bank 2006 
Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, the Highlands State Bank 2006 Incentive Stock Option Plan and the Highlands 
State Bank 2006 Nonemployee Directors Stock Option Plan (2006 Plans), which were approved by the 
stockholders at the 2006 annual meeting in April 2006. These plans were adopted by the Company as part of the 
holding company reorganization. 

The 2006 Plans enabled the Board of Directors to grant stock options to executives, other key employees and 
nonemployee directors.  The Company reserved 150,000 shares of common stock for issuance upon the exercise 
of options granted under the 2006 Plans. The 2006 Plans terminated ten years from stockholder approval, and at 
December 31, 2016, these options under the 2006 Plans have expired. 

In 2011, the Board of Directors adopted the Highlands Bancorp, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (“2011 
Plan”) which was approved by the stockholders at the 2011 annual meeting in May 2011.  This Plan authorizes 
the Company to issue stock options or restricted stock to eligible participants.  The Company reserved 136,000 
shares of the Company’s common stock, which may be granted as incentive stock options, non-qualified stock 
options and restricted stock awards to eligible employees, officers, non-employee directors, advisory board 
members, and other service providers to the Company under this Plan. The options under this Plan will have a 
maximum term of ten years, subject to earlier termination of the options as provided by the 2011 Plan. Options 
granted under the Plan as ISO’s are to be granted at an exercise price of not less than 100% of the fair market 
value of the Company’s common stock on the date of the grant.  However, if the optionee owns stock possessing 
more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of the Company 's common stock, the purchase 
price per share of common stock deliverable upon the exercise of each option shall not be less than 110% of the 
fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant or the par value of the common stock, whichever is 
greater.  All non-qualified options must have an exercise price of at least 100% of fair market value on the date of 
grant.   Fair market value is to be determined by the Board of Directors in good faith.   

No options or restricted stock awards may be granted under the Plan more than ten (10) years after adoption by 
the shareholders, but options or restricted stock awards previously granted may extend beyond that date.  Awards 
under the Plan will be made to eligible Participants at the discretion of the Board of Directors, who may at any 
time amend, suspend or terminate the Plan.   
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Note 14 - Stock Option Plans (Continued)

In 2015, the Board of Directors awarded stock options to one member of the Board of Directors and also to 
certain employees of the Company and/or its wholly-owned subsidiary, Highlands State Bank under the  
Highlands Bancorp, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan. The board member was granted 5,000 stock options,
and the employees were granted a total of 10,000 stock options under this Plan. These grants of options have 
exercise prices of $6.75 and $6.95, which were the fair market values for the common stock upon the close of 
trading on the dates of the grants, are subject to a vesting period of three years, and have a maximum term of ten 
years from the date of grant.

The Bank accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB”) ASC 718 “Compensation-Stock Options” which requires compensation costs related to share-based 
payment transactions to be recognized in the financial statements over the period that an employee provides service 
in exchange for the award. Share-based compensation expense of $8,000 and $7,000, respectively is included in the 
accompanying statement of income for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. 

The following is a summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information for its 2006 and 2011 
Plans for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:  

Weighted 
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Options Price Term Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2014 250,000 6.75$        

   Options granted during 2015 15,000 6.88

   Options forfeited during 2015 (3,000) 3.55

Outstanding at December 31, 2015 262,000 6.79$        4.0 years 564,100$     

   Options expired during 2016 (124,000) 10.00

   Options exercised during 2016 (3,000) 3.55

Outstanding at December 31, 2016 135,000 3.92$        6.3 years 820,750$     

Exercisable at December 31, 2016 128,333 3.77$        6.2 years 799,748$     

The following is a summary of the Company’s stock options outstanding at December 31, 2016: 

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted

Number of Remaining Average Number of Average
Options Contractual Exercise Options Exercise

Exercise Prices Outstanding Life in Years Price Exercisable Price
$3.55 120,000 6.1 $3.55 120,000 $3.55
$6.75 5,000 8.1 $6.75 1,666 $6.75
$6.95 10,000 8.0 $6.95 6,667 $6.95

$3.55 - $6.95 135,000 6.3 $3.92 128,333 $3.77
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Note 14 - Stock Option Plans (Continued)  

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model 
with the following weighted average assumptions for grants in 2015: dividend yield of 0%, risk-free interest 
rate of 1.69%, expected life of 6.0 years, and expected volatility of 29%. The volatility percentage was based on 
the average expected volatility of similar public financial institutions in the Bank's market area. There were 
no stock options granted during 2016. The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2015 was $2.20. 
The remaining unexpensed compensation cost of the options at December 31, 2016 is $7,000 which will be 
expensed over the next year.

Note 15 - Regulatory Matters 

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies.  
Failure to meet the minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional 
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s
financial statements.  Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective 
action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, 
liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.  The Bank’s 
capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, 
risk-weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain 
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below). In July 2013, the Office of the Comptroller of the 
Currency and the other federal bank regulatory agencies issued a final rule that will revise their leverage and risk-
based capital requirements and the method for calculating risk-weighted assets to make them consistent with 
agreements that were reached by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision and certain provisions of the 
Dodd-Frank Act. Among other things, the rule establishes a new common equity Tier 1 minimum capital 
requirement (4.5% of risk-weighted assets), increases the minimum Tier 1 capital to risk-based assets requirement 
(from 4% to 6% of risk-weighted assets) and assigns a higher risk weight (150%) to exposures that are more than 
90 days past due or are on nonaccrual status and to certain commercial real estate facilities that finance the 
acquisition, development or construction of real property.  The final rule also requires unrealized gains and losses 
on certain “available-for-sale” securities holdings to be included for purposes of calculating regulatory capital 
unless a one-time opt-out is exercised.  Additional constraints will also be imposed on the inclusion in regulatory 
capital of mortgage-servicing assets, defined tax assets and minority interests. The rule limits a banking 
organization’s capital distributions and certain discretionary bonus payments if the banking organization does not 
hold a “capital conservation buffer” consisting of 2.5% of common equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets in 
addition to the amount necessary to meet its minimum risk-based capital requirements.  The final rule became 
effective for the Bank on January 1, 2015.  The capital conservation buffer requirement will be phased in initially 
at 0.625% beginning January 1, 2016 and ending January 1, 2019, when the full capital conservation buffer 
requirement will be effective. Management believes that, as of December 31, 2016, the Bank met all capital 
adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of September 30, 2015, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.  There are 
no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s category.
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Note 15 - Regulatory Matters (Continued) 

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are presented below: 

To be Well Capitalized
under Prompt

For Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes (1) Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2016

Total risk-based capital 40,078$      12.3 % 26,069$      8.0 % 32,586$     10.0 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital 36,511        11.2 19,551        6.0 26,069       8.0
Common equity tier 1 capital 36,511        11.2 14,664        4.5 21,181       6.5
Tier 1 leverage ratio 36,511        9.3 15,706        4.0 19,632       5.0

December 31, 2015
Total risk-based capital 30,980$      11.1 % 22,329$      8.0 % 27,911$     10.0 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital 27,624        9.9 16,747        6.0 22,329       8.0
Common equity tier 1 capital 21,387        7.7 12,560        4.5 18,142       6.5
Tier 1 leverage ratio 27,624        8.9 12,460        4.0 15,575       5.0

(1) Amounts and ratios at December 31, 2016 do not include the capital conservation buffer. 

 

 
The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on the amount of dividends that it may declare due to regulatory 
considerations. Although the Company is not subject to these same restrictions, unless the Company expands its 
operations, the operations of the Bank will be the only source of cash dividends for shareholders of the Company. 
Therefore, as a practical matter, the ability of the Company to pay cash dividends is subject to any restrictions on 
the Bank’s ability to pay dividends to the Company. 

Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments; however, 
there are inherent weaknesses in any estimation technique.  Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, 
the fair value estimates herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could have realized in a  
sale transaction on the dates indicated.  The estimated fair value amounts have been measured as of year end and 
have not been re-evaluated or updated for purposes of these financial statements subsequent to year end.  As such,  
the estimated fair values of these financial instruments subsequent to the period-end reporting dates may be 
different than the amounts reported at year end.   

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.  This 
guidance, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP, expands 
disclosures about fair value measurements and applies to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit 
fair value measurements.  Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell the asset or transfer the  
liability in an orderly transaction (that is not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at 
the measurement date under current market conditions. 

The fair value guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation methods used to 
measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for  
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 
measurements).  
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments (continued)

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, 
unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly, 
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement 
and unobservable (i.e., supported with little or no market activity). 

An asset or liability’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement. 

For financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the 
fair value hierarchy used at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:  

(Level 1)
Quoted Prices (Level 2)

in Active Significant (Level 3)
Markets for Other Significant
Indentical Observable Unobservable

(In Thousands) Total Assets Inputs Inputs
December 31, 2016:
    U.S. Treasuries 5,458$            5,458$            -$                 -$                 
    U.S. Government agencies and
       sponsored agencies 3,002 - 3,002 -
    U.S. Government sponsored
       enterprises (GSEs) - 
       mortgage-backed securities 539 - 539 -
    Other 53 - 53 -

9,052$            5,458$            3,594$            -$                 

December 31, 2015:
    U.S. Treasuries 50$                   50$                   -$                  -$                  
    U.S. Government agencies and
       sponsored agencies 2,988 - 2,988 -
    U.S. Government sponsored
       enterprises (GSEs) - 
       mortgage-backed securities 686 - 686 -
    Other 75 - 75 -

3,799$              50$                   3,749$              -$                  
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments (Continued)

For financial assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within 
the fair value hierarchy used at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:  

(Level 1)
Quoted Prices (Level 2)

in Active Significant (Level 3)
Markets for Other Significant

December 31, Indentical Observable Unobservable
Description 2016 Assets Inputs Inputs

(In Thousands)

Impaired loans 2,142$            -$                 -$                 2,142$            

Foreclosed assets 237$                -$                 -$                 237$                

(Level 1)
Quoted Prices (Level 2)

in Active Significant (Level 3)
Markets for Other Significant

December 31, Indentical Observable Unobservable
Description 2015 Assets Inputs Inputs

(In Thousands)

Impaired loans 1,614$              -$                  -$                  1,614$              

Foreclosed assets 207$                 -$                  -$                  207$                 

    

Real estate properties acquired through, or in lieu of, foreclosure are to be sold and are carried at fair value less 
estimated cost to sell. Fair value is based upon independent market prices or appraised value of the property. 
These assets are included in Level 3 fair value based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement.
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following table presents additional qualitative information about assets measured at fair value on a 
nonrecurring basis and for which the Company has utilized Level 3 inputs to determine fair value: 

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
Fair Value Valuation Unobservable Range (Weighted

(In Thousands) Estimate Techniques Input Average)

December 31, 2016
Impaired loans 2,142$      Appraisal of Appraisal

collateral (1) adjustments (2) 0% (0%)
Liquidation
expenses (2) 0% to 7.9% (4.5%)

Foreclosed assets 237$         Appraisal of Appraisal -7% to -16.7% (-11.9%)
collateral (1) adjustments (2)

Liquidation
expenses (2) 6.4% to 6.8% (6.6%)

December 31, 2015
Impaired loans 1,614$      Appraisal of Appraisal

collateral (1) adjustments (2) 0% (0%)
Liquidation
expenses (2) 0% to 59.61% (6.5%)

Foreclosed assets 237$         Appraisal of Appraisal 0% to 7.0% (6.5%)
collateral (1) adjustments (2)

Liquidation
expenses (2) 0% to 6.0% (5.5%)

(1) Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisals of the underlying collateral,
       which generally include various Level 3 inputs which are not identifiable.
(2) Appraisals may be adjusted by management for qualitative factors such as economic conditions
       and estimated liquidation expenses. The range and weighted average of liquidation expenses
       and other appraisal adjustments are presented as a percentage of the appraisal.

Below is management’s estimate of the fair value of all financial instruments, whether carried at cost or fair value 
on the Company’s balance sheet. The following information should not be interpreted as an estimate of the fair 
value of the entire Company since a fair value calculation is only provided for a limited portion of the Company’s
assets and liabilities.  Due to a wide range of valuation techniques and the degree of subjectivity used in making 
the estimates, comparisons between the Company’s disclosures and those of other companies may not be 
meaningful.   
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of the Company’s financial 
instruments at December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Carried at Cost)
The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and short-term instruments approximate those 
assets’ fair values. 

Time Deposits in Other Banks (Carried at Cost)
Fair values for fixed-rate time certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation 
that applies interest rates currently being offered in the market on certificates to a schedule of aggregated 
expected monthly maturities on time deposits.  The Company generally purchases amounts below the insured 
limit, limiting the amount of credit risk on these time deposits.  

Securities Available for Sale (Carried at Fair Value)
The fair value of securities available for sale are determined by obtaining quoted market prices or nationally 
recognized exchanges (Level 1) or by matrix pricing (Level 2), which is a mathematical technique used 
widely in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted market prices for the 
specific securities but rather by relying on the securities’ relationship to other benchmark quoted prices. For 
these Level 2 securities, the Company obtains fair value measurements from an independent pricing service. 
The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash 
flows, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution data, market consensus prepayment 
speeds, credit information and the security’s terms and conditions, among other things.

Loans Held For Sale (Carried at Fair Value)
The fair values of loans held for sale is determined, when possible, using quoted secondary-market prices. If 
no such quoted prices exist, the fair value of a loan is determined using quoted prices for a similar loan or 
loans, adjusted for the specific attributes of that loan.  The Company did not write down any loans held for 
sale during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. 

Loans Receivable (Carried at Cost) 

The fair values of loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using market rates at the balance
sheet date that reflect the credit and interest rate-risk inherent in the loans.  Projected future cash flows are 
calculated based upon contractual maturity or call dates, projected repayments and prepayments of principal.  
Generally, for variable rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair 
values are based on carrying values.  

Impaired Loans (Generally Carried at Fair Value)
Impaired loans are those in which management has measured impairment generally based on the fair value of 
the loan’s collateral.  Fair value is generally determined based upon independent third-party appraisals of the 
properties, or discounted cash flows based upon the expected proceeds.  These assets are included as Level 3 
fair values, based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements.  
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Restricted Investment in Bank Stock (Carried at Cost)

The carrying amount of restricted investment in bank stock approximates fair value, and considers the limited 
marketability of such securities.  

Accrued Interest Receivable and Payable (Carried at Cost)

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable approximates its fair value.

Deposit Liabilities (Carried at Cost) 
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and noninterest checking, passbook savings and 
money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., 
their carrying amounts).  Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted 
cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered in the market on certificates to a
schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits. 

Borrowings (Carried at Cost)
Fair values of FHLB advances are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on quoted prices for 
new FHLB advances with similar credit risk characteristics, terms and remaining maturity.  These prices 
obtained from this active market represent a market value that is deemed to represent the transfer price if the 
liability were assumed by a third party.  

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments (Disclosed at Cost) 
Fair values for off-balance sheet financial instruments (lending commitments and letters of credit) are based 
on fees currently charged in the market to enter into similar agreements, taking into account, the remaining 
terms of the agreements and the counterparties’ credit standing. 
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are summarized below:

(Level 1) (Level 3)
Carrying or Quoted Prices in (Level 2) Significant

Notional Fair Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
December 31, 2016 Amount Value Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
(In Thousands)
Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 8,084$    8,084$    8,084$                 -$                     -$             
Time deposits in other banks 32,257 32,257 - 32,257 -
Securities available for sale 9,052 9,052 - 9,052 -
Loans held for sale 5,009 5,009 - - 5,009
Loans receivable, net 331,580 332,035 - - 332,035
Restricted investment in bank stock 681 681 - 681 -
Accrued interest receivable 1,054 1,054 - 1,054 -

Financial Liabilities:
Demand and savings deposits 227,903 227,903 - 227,903 -
Time deposits 114,891 114,836 - - 114,836
Borrowings 22,255 22,547 - 22,547 -
Accrued interest payable 130 130 - 130 -

Off-Balance Financial Instruments:
Commitments to extend credit - - - - -
Letters of credit - - - - -

(Level 1) (Level 3)
Carrying or Quoted Prices in (Level 2) Significant

Notional Fair Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
December 31, 2015 Amount Value Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
(In Thousands)
Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 4,909$      4,909$      4,909$                   -$                      -$              
Time deposits in other banks 10,238 10,238 - 10,238 -
Securities available for sale 3,799 3,799 - 3,799 -
Loans held for sale 2,622 2,622 - - 2,622
Loans receivable, net 284,266 284,762 - - 284,762
Restricted investment in bank stock 811 811 - 811 -
Accrued interest receivable 867 867 - 867 -

Financial Liabilities:
Demand and savings deposits 166,370 166,370 - 166,370 -
Time deposits 94,343 94,126 - - 94,126
Borrowings 27,467 27,763 - 27,763 -
Accrued interest payable 98 98 - 98 -

Off-Balance Financial Instruments:
Commitments to extend credit - - - - -
Letters of credit - - - - -
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments (Continued)

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, "Financial Instruments - Overall: Recognition and 
Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities." This ASU addresses certain aspects of recognition, 
measurement, presentation, and disclosure of financial instruments. This amendment supersedes the guidance to 
classify equity securities with readily determinable fair values into different categories, requires equity securities 
to be measured at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized through net income, and simplifies the 
impairment assessment of equity investments without readily determinable fair values. The amendment requires 
public business entities that are required to disclose the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized 
cost on the balance sheet to measure that fair value using the exit price notion. The amendment requires an entity 
to present separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair value of a liability 
resulting from a change in the instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has elected to measure the liability at 
fair value in accordance with the fair value option. The amendment requires separate presentation of financial 
assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and form of financial asset on the balance sheet or in the 
accompanying notes to the financial statements. The amendment reduces diversity in current practice by 
clarifying that an entity should evaluate the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset related to 
available for sale securities in combination with the entity’s other deferred tax assets. This amendment is effective 
for fiscal years, including interim periods, beginning after December 15, 2017. Entities should apply the 
amendment by means of a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption, with 
the exception of the amendment related to equity securities without readily determinable fair values, which should 
be applied prospectively to equity investments that exist as of the date of adoption. The Company intends to adopt 
the accounting standard during the first quarter of 2018, and is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of 
the guidance will have on the Company consolidated financial statements.

Note 17 - Contingencies 

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to various lawsuits involving matters generally 
incidental to its business.  Management is of the opinion that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from any 
pending actions or proceedings will not have a material effect on the financial position or results of operations of 
the Company.  
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